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Report of Independent Auditors

Audit Committee and Management of
Transatlantic Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Transatlantic Holdings,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of earnings (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss), changes in stockholder’s equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries at December
31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Required Supplementary Information
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that paid and incurred loss and loss
adjustment expense development as well as average annual payout for years prior to 2020
presented in Note 5 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the FASB who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

February 23, 2021
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation)

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

As of December 31,

2020 2019

(in thousands, except for share data)

Assets
Investments:

Securities at fair value: 
Equity securities (cost: 2020 –$891,245; 2019 –$1,016,692) 1,376,705$        1,537,645$        
Debt securities (amortized cost: 2020 –$11,028,240; 2019 –$9,927,866; allowance for credit 

losses: 2020 –$1,652) 11,545,284 10,216,417
Short-term investments, cost approximates fair value 307,051 280,729

Commercial mortgage loans 469,168 480,344
Other invested assets 298,775 325,248

Total investments 13,996,983 12,840,383
Cash 555,846 963,678
Accrued investment income 64,166 68,011
Premium balances receivable 858,489 723,136
Reinsurance recoverables 865,784 946,760
Ceded unearned premiums 35,692 40,276
Deferred acquisition costs 460,670 406,654
Property and equipment at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 23,330 29,131
Goodwill 8,812 8,812
Intangible assets, net of amortization 78,389 78,188
Current taxes receivable - 2,479
Net deferred tax assets 6,059 39,220
Funds held under reinsurance agreements 793,547 770,587
Other assets 229,780 258,036

Total assets 17,977,547$     17,175,351$     

Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 9,813,957$        9,323,836$        
Unearned premiums 1,873,725 1,668,103
Senior notes 388,833 389,806
Reinsurance payable 107,831 109,420
Current taxes payable 6,510 -
Other liabilities 409,625 440,891

Total liabilities 12,600,481 11,932,056

Common stock ($0.01 par value; shares authorized, issued and outstanding: 1,000) - -
Contributed capital 4,319,718 4,319,942
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 299,920 93,469
Retained earnings 757,428 829,884

Total stockholder's equity 5,377,066 5,243,295
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity 17,977,547$     17,175,351$     

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation)

Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

For the  Ye a rs  Ende d  De c e mbe r 31,

2020 2019

(in  thous a nds)

Revenues

Net premiums earned 4,644,712$         4,327,030$         

Net investment income 330,214 371,905

Change in the fair value of equity securities 55,411 386,098

Net realized capital gains (losses) 34,945 41,256

Change in allowance for credit losses on available for sale securities (7,102) -

Other than temporary impairments - (19,110)

Other income 25,894 21,894

Total revenues 5,084,074 5,129,073

Costs and Expenses

Net loss and loss adjustment expenses 3,386,821 2,961,120

Commissions, brokerage and other underwriting expenses 1,425,088 1,406,770

Other operating expenses 64,074 59,037

Amortization of intangible assets (201) (87)

Interest expense 27,028 27,092

Total costs and expenses 4,902,810 4,453,932

Earnings (losses) before income taxes 181,264 675,141

Income tax expense (benefit) 42,199 136,476

Net earnings (loss) 139,065 538,665

Other comprehensive income (losses):

Change in unrealized (losses) gains, net of deferred taxes of ($48,330) and ($75,301) for

2020 and 2019, respectively 181,815 283,275

Change in unrealized currency translation adjustment, net of deferred taxes of ($5,760) and

($681) for 2020 and 2019, respectively 21,666 2,567

Retirement plans 2,970 (5,026)

Comprehensive income (losses) 345,516$            819,481$            
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation)

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity 

Common 

Stock Contributed Capital

Accumulated Other 

Comprehensive 

Income Retained Earnings Stockholder's Equity

(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2018 -$          4,318,676$            (187,347)$           592,201$           4,723,530$            

Add (deduct):

Net earnings (losses) - - - 538,665 538,665

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Change in unrealized appreciation of investments, net - - 283,275 - 283,275

Change in unrealized currency translation adjustment - - 2,567 - 2,567

Retirement plans - - (5,026) - (5,026)

Comprehensive  income (losses) - - 280,816 - 280,816

Dividends - - - (300,982) (300,982)

Other - 1,266 - - 1,266

Balance at December 31, 2019 -$          4,319,942$            93,469$               829,884$           5,243,295$            

Add (deduct):

Cummulative effect of adoption of new accounting pronouncements - - - (1,521) (1,521)

Net earnings (losses) - - - 139,065 139,065

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Change in unrealized appreciation of investments, net - - 181,815 - 181,815

Change in unrealized currency translation adjustment - - 21,666 - 21,666

Retirement plans - - 2,970 - 2,970

Comprehensive  income (losses) - - 206,451 - 206,451

Dividends - - - (210,000) (210,000)

Other - (224) - - (224)

Balance at December 31, 2020 -$          4,319,718$            299,920$             757,428$           5,377,066$            

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings  (loss) 139,065$               538,665$               

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 54,954 37,204

Change in the fair value of equity securities (55,411) (386,098)

Net realized capital (gains) losses (34,945) (41,256)

Change in allowance for credit losses on available for sale securities and commercial mortgage loans 7,764 -

Other than temporary impairments - 19,110

(Increase) decrease in reinsurance recoverables, net of reinsurance payable 78,192 48,172

(Increase) decrease in premium balances receivable (135,642) (72,587)

(Increase) decrease in ceded unearned premiums 4,584 22,435

(Increase) decrease in deferred acquisition costs (54,016) (45,469)

Increase (decrease) in unearned premiums 205,622 144,158

Increase (decrease) in loss and loss adjustment expenses 490,121 (118,316)

(Increase) decrease in funds held under reinsurance agreements (22,960) (28,485)

Change in unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses)  (98,734) (17,939)

Other, net (5,877) 255,326

Net adjustments 433,652 (183,745)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 572,717 354,920

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of debt securities (5,199,747) (4,739,055)

Purchases of equity securities (533,657) (251,710)

Sales of debt securities 2,980,336 3,251,536

Maturities and redemptions of debt securities 1,203,229 842,088

Sales of equity securities 758,485 921,723

Net (purchases) sales of short-term investments (25,406) (124,189)

Net (purchases) sales of commercial mortgage loans 10,075 (6,773)

Acquisition of subsidary, net of cash acquired - (1,146)

Other, net 13,514 (17,717)

  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (793,171) (125,243)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid (210,000) (200,000)
Other, net (1,000) -

  Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (211,000) (200,000)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 23,622 5,620

Net increase (decrease) in cash (407,832) 35,297

Cash at beginning of period 963,678 928,381

Cash at end of period 555,846$               963,678$               

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest paid 28,000$                28,000$                

Income taxes paid (refunded) 54,401 (53,936)

Non-cash dividends paid -$                       100,982$               

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Principles 

(a) Principles of Financial Statement Presentation 

Transatlantic Holdings, Inc. (“TransRe”), a Delaware corporation, is engaged principally in the property and casualty reinsurance 
business. TransRe is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation (“Alleghany”). Unless the context otherwise requires, 
references to “TransRe” include TransRe together with its subsidiaries. 

TransRe, through its principal wholly-owned subsidiaries Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (“TRC”), TransRe London Ltd. 
(“TRL”) and TransRe Europe S.A. (“TRESA”) provides property and casualty reinsurance to insurance and other reinsurance 
companies. These products are distributed both through brokers and on a direct basis in the domestic and foreign markets. 
Domestically, TransRe is headquartered in New York, New York and has seven other office locations in the U.S. TransRe also has 
operations worldwide, including: Africa, Australia, Bermuda, Canada, Asia (where it has five locations), South America (where it has 
two locations) and the U.K. and Europe (where it has four locations). TRC is licensed, accredited or otherwise approved as a reinsurer 
in all 50 states and the District of Columbia in the U.S. and in Puerto Rico and Guam. TRC is also licensed in Bermuda, Canada, 
Japan, the U.K., Mexico, several countries in South and Central America and the Caribbean, the Hong Kong Special Administrative 
Region of the People’s Republic of China, Australia and Singapore. In addition, TRL is licensed as a reinsurer in the U.K. and India 
and TRESA is licensed as a reinsurer in Luxembourg and Dubai.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the results of TransRe and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and have 
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). All material inter-company balances 
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of 
the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. TransRe relies 
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances to make judgments 
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities and reported revenues and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may differ materially from those reported results to the extent that those estimates and assumptions prove to be inaccurate. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) in the period 
in which the changes are made. 

(b) Investments 

Investments consist of debt securities, equity securities, short-term investments, commercial mortgage loans and other invested 
assets. TransRe considers all of its marketable debt securities and short-term investments as available-for-sale (“AFS”). Debt securities 
consist of securities with an initial fixed maturity of more than one year. Debt securities typically take the form of bonds and redeemable 
preferred stock. Equity securities generally consist of securities that represent ownership interests in an enterprise. Equity securities 
typically take the form of common stock or perpetual preferred stock. Mutual funds and exchange-traded securities are also classified 
as equity securities, including those that invest mostly in debt securities. All marketable equity securities are measured at fair value with 
changes in fair value recognized in net earnings. Short-term investments include commercial paper, certificates of deposit, money market 
instruments and any fixed maturity investment with an initial maturity of one year or less. 

AFS securities are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses during the year, net of the related tax effect, for AFS 
securities are excluded from earnings and reflected in comprehensive income, and the cumulative effect is reported as a separate 
component of stockholders’ equity until realized. Beginning January 1, 2020, credit losses for AFS securities are recorded through an 
allowance for credit losses. Changes in the allowance for credit losses are recorded for (or as a reversal of) credit losses on AFS securities. 
Credit losses on an AFS security cannot exceed the amount by which the fair value of the security is less than its amortized cost. Any 
portion of a decline in fair value related to a debt security that is believed to arise from factors other than credit is recorded as a component 
of other comprehensive income rather than charged against earnings. Prior to January 1, 2019, if a decline in fair value was deemed to 
be other than temporary, the investment was written down to its fair value and the amount of the write-down was recorded as an other 
than temporary impairment (“OTTI”) loss on the statement of earnings. In addition, any portion of such decline related to debt securities 
that was believed to arise from factors other than credit is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income rather than against 
earnings. 

Commercial mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balance, less an allowance for credit losses. Credit losses for 
commercial mortgage loans are recorded through an allowance for credit losses. Estimates of expected credit losses are based on 
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historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts, and include an ongoing review of amounts 
outstanding, the creditworthiness of the borrower, value of the real estate collateral and other relevant factors. Amounts deemed to be 
uncollectible are written off against the allowance. Subsequent reversals in credit loss estimates are recognized in earnings. Interest 
income on loans is accrued as earned.  

Other invested assets include invested assets not identified above, primarily related to: (i) equity investments in operating 
companies where TransRe has significant influence (an aggregate common stock position held at or above 20 percent is presumed to 
convey significant influence); (ii) partnership investments (including hedge funds and private equity funds); and (iii) non-marketable 
equity investments. Equity investments in operating companies where TransRe has significant influence are accounted for using the 
equity method. Partnership investments are accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net earnings or using the 
equity method where TransRe has significant influence. Non-marketable equity investments are accounted for at fair value with changes 
in fair value recognized in net earnings. 

Net realized gains and losses on investments are determined in accordance with the specific identification method. 

Net investment income consists primarily of: (i) interest income from debt securities, short-term investments, commercial 
mortgage loans, funds withheld by cedants and cash, including any premium amortization or discount accretion; (ii) dividend income 
from equity securities; and (iii) investment income from other invested assets, which includes results arising from partnership 
investments whether accounted for under the equity method or at fair value. Interest income is accrued when earned.  

Premiums and discounts arising from the purchase of certain debt securities are treated as a yield adjustment over the estimated 
useful life of the securities, adjusted for anticipated prepayments using the retrospective interest method. Under this method, the effective 
yield on a security is estimated. Such estimates are based on the prepayment terms of the security, past actual cash flows, and assumptions 
as to future expected cash flow. The future expected cash flow assumptions consider various prepayment assumptions based on historical 
experience, as well as current market conditions. Periodically, the effective yield is re-estimated to reflect actual prepayments and 
updated future expected cash flow assumptions. Upon a re-estimation, a security’s book value is restated at the most recently calculated 
effective yield, assuming that yield had been in effect since the security was purchased. This treatment results in an increase or decrease 
to net investment income (accretion of premium or amortization of discount) at the new measurement date. With respect to callable debt 
securities purchased at a premium to par value, the amortization period for that premium is the earliest call date. 

See Note 1(o) for additional information regarding investments.  

In the normal course of business, TransRe has investments in variable interest entities (“VIE”) primarily as a passive investor in 
residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, and private equity 
limited partnerships issued by VIEs.  TransRe also has an investment in the Pillar investments, as defined and discussed further in 
Note 3(i).  TransRe is not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs.  TransRe’s maximum exposure to loss with respect to these 
investments is limited to the investment carrying values included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the unfunded commitments 
related to partnerships and private equity investments.  TransRe has unfunded commitments of $36 million at each of December 31, 
2020 and 2019, respectively.

(c) Fair value 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between willing, able and knowledgeable market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements are not 
adjusted for transaction costs. In addition, a three-tiered hierarchy for inputs is used in management’s determination of fair value of 
financial instruments that emphasizes the use of observable inputs over the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable 
inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant 
assumptions based on the best information available under the circumstances. In assessing the appropriateness of using observable inputs 
in making its fair value determinations, TransRe considers whether the market for a particular security is “active” or “inactive” based 
on all the relevant facts and circumstances. A market may be considered to be inactive if there are relatively few recent transactions or 
if there is a significant decrease in market volume. Furthermore, TransRe considers whether observable transactions are “orderly” or 
not. TransRe does not consider a transaction to be orderly if there is evidence of a forced liquidation or other distressed condition; as 
such, little or no weight is given to that transaction as an indicator of fair value. 

Although TransRe is responsible for the determination of the fair value of its financial assets and the supporting methodologies 
and assumptions, it employs third party valuation service providers to gather, analyze and interpret market information and derive fair 
values based upon relevant methodologies and assumptions for individual instruments. When those providers are unable to obtain 
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sufficient market observable information upon which to estimate the fair value for a particular security, fair value is determined either 
by requesting a quote, which is generally non-binding, from brokers who are knowledgeable about these securities or by employing 
widely accepted valuation models. 

Valuation service providers typically obtain data about market transactions and other key valuation model inputs from multiple 
sources and, through the use of widely accepted valuation models, provide a single fair value measurement for individual securities for  
which a fair value has been requested under the terms of service agreements. The inputs used by the valuation service providers include, 
but are not limited to, market prices from recently completed transactions and transactions of comparable securities, interest rate yield 
curves, credit spreads, currency rates and other market observable information, as applicable. The valuation models take into account, 
among other things, market observable information as of the measurement date as well as the specific attributes of the security being 
valued including its term, interest rate, credit rating, industry sector and, when applicable, collateral quality and other issue or issuer 
specific information. When market transactions or other market observable data is limited, the extent to which judgment is applied in 
determining fair value is greatly increased. 

The three-tiered hierarchy used in management’s determination of fair value is broken down into three levels based on the 
reliability and observability of inputs as follows: 

• Level 1: Valuations are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that TransRe has the ability to access for 
identical, unrestricted assets and do not involve any meaningful degree of judgment. An active market is defined as a market 
where transactions for the financial instrument occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information 
on an ongoing basis. TransRe’s Level 1 assets include publicly traded common stocks and mutual funds (which are included 
on the consolidated balance sheet in equity securities) where TransRe’s valuations are based on quoted market prices. 

• Level 2: Valuations are based on direct and indirect observable inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1. 
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset, such as the terms of the security and market-based inputs. Terms of the security include coupon, 
maturity date and any special provisions that may, for example, enable the investor, at its election, to redeem the security 
prior to its scheduled maturity date (such provisions may apply to all debt securities except U.S. Government obligations). 
Market-based inputs include interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals and current 
credit rating(s) of the security. Market-based inputs may also include credit spreads of all debt securities except U.S. 
Government obligations, and currency rates for certain foreign government obligations and foreign corporate bonds 
denominated in foreign currencies. Fair values are determined using a market approach that relies on the securities’ 
relationships to quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, as well as the other inputs described above. In determining 
the fair values for the vast majority of commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) and other asset- backed securities, 
as well as a small portion of residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”), an income approach is used to corroborate 
and further support the fair values determined by the market approach. The income approach primarily involves developing 
a discounted cash flow model using the future projected cash flows of the underlying collateral, and the terms of the security. 
Level 2 assets generally include short-term investments and most debt securities. TransRe’s Level 2 liabilities consist of the 
Senior Notes, as defined in Note 1(l). 

• Level 3: Valuations are based on techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable. The valuation of Level 3 assets 
requires the greatest degree of judgment. These measurements may be made under circumstances in which there is little, if 
any, market activity for the asset. TransRe’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement 
in its entirety requires judgment. In making the assessment, TransRe considers factors specific to the asset. In certain cases, 
the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the 
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is classified is determined based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Assets classified as Level 3 principally include other asset-backed 
securities (primarily, collateralized loan obligations) and, to a lesser extent U.S. and foreign corporate bonds (including 
privately issued securities), RMBS, CMBS and commercial mortgage loans. 

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are initially valued at the transaction price. Subsequently, TransRe uses widely 
accepted valuation practices that produce a fair value measurement. The vast majority of fair values are determined using 
an income approach. The income approach primarily involves developing a discounted cash flow model using the future 
projected cash flows of the underlying collateral, as well as other inputs described below. A few Level 3 valuations are 
based entirely on non-binding broker quotes. These securities consist primarily of mortgage-backed and asset-backed 
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securities where reliable pool and loan level collateral information cannot be reasonably obtained, and as such, an income 
approach is not feasible. 

Since Level 3 valuations are based on techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable with little or no market 
activity, the fair values under the market approach for Level 3 securities are less credible than under the income approach; 
however, the market approach, where feasible, is used to corroborate the fair values determined by the income approach. 
The market approach primarily relies on the securities’ relationships to quoted transaction prices for similarly structured 
instruments. To the extent that transaction prices for similarly structured instruments are not available for a particular 
security, other market approaches are used to corroborate the fair values determined by the income approach, including 
option adjusted spread analyses. 

Unobservable inputs, significant to the measurement and valuation of mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, are 
generally used in the income approach, and include assumptions about prepayment speed and collateral performance, 
including default, delinquency and loss severity rates. Significant changes to any one of these inputs, or combination of 
inputs, could significantly change the fair value measurement for these securities. 

The impact of prepayment speeds on fair value is dependent on a number of variables including whether the securities were 
purchased at a premium or discount. A decrease in interest rates generally increases the assumed rate of prepayments, and 
an increase in interest rates generally decreases the assumed speed of prepayments. Increased prepayments increase the 
yield on securities purchased at a discount and reduce the yield on securities purchased at a premium. In a decreasing 
prepayment environment, yields on securities purchased at a discount are reduced but are increased for securities purchased 
at a premium. Changes in default assumptions on underlying collateral are generally accompanied by directionally similar 
changes in other collateral performance factors, but generally result in a directionally opposite change in prepayment 
assumptions. 

TransRe employs specific control processes to determine the reasonableness of the fair values of its financial assets and liabilities. 
TransRe’s processes are designed to ensure that the values received or internally estimated are accurately recorded and that the data 
inputs and the valuation techniques used are appropriate, consistently applied and that the assumptions are reasonable and consistent 
with the objective of determining fair value. TransRe assesses the reasonableness of individual security values received from valuation 
service providers through various analytical techniques. In addition, TransRe validates the reasonableness of fair values by comparing 
information obtained from TransRe’s valuation service providers to other third party valuation sources for selected securities. TransRe 
also validates prices obtained from brokers for selected securities through reviews by those who have relevant expertise and who are 
independent of those charged with executing investing transactions. 

In addition to such procedures, TransRe reviews the reasonableness of its classification of securities within the three-tiered 
hierarchy to ensure that the classification is consistent with GAAP. 

See Note 2 for additional information regarding fair value. 

(d) Cash 

Cash includes all deposit balances with a bank that are available for immediate withdrawal, whether interest-bearing or non-
interest bearing. 

(e) Premiums and Unearned Premiums 

Premiums are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the term of an insurance policy. Assumed reinsurance premiums 
written and earned are based on reports received from ceding companies for pro rata treaty contracts and are generally recorded as 
written based on contract terms for excess-of-loss treaty contracts. Premiums are earned ratably over the terms of the related coverages. 

Unearned premiums and ceded unearned premiums represent the portion of gross premiums written and ceded premiums written, 
respectively, related to the unexpired periods of such coverages. Assumed reinsurance premiums written and earned, along with related 
costs, for which data has not been reported by the ceding companies, are estimated based on historical patterns and other relevant factors. 
These estimates may change when actual data for such estimated items becomes available. 

Premium balances receivable are reported net of an allowance for credit losses. Estimates of expected credit losses are based on 
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts, and include an ongoing review of amounts 
outstanding, length of collection periods, the creditworthiness of the insured and other relevant factors. Amounts deemed to be 
uncollectible are written off against the allowance. Subsequent reversals are recognized in earnings.
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(f) Reinsurance Ceded 

Reinsurance is used to mitigate the exposure to losses, manage capacity and protect capital resources. Reinsuring loss exposures 
does not relieve a ceding entity from its obligations to policyholders and cedants. Reinsurance recoverables (including amounts related 
to incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims) and ceded unearned premiums are reported as assets. To minimize exposure to losses 
related to a reinsurer’s inability to pay, the financial condition of such reinsurer is evaluated initially upon placement of the reinsurance 
and periodically thereafter. In addition to considering the financial condition of a reinsurer, the collectability of the reinsurance 
recoverables is evaluated based upon a number of other factors. Such factors include the amounts outstanding, length of collection 
periods, disputes, any collateral or letters of credit held and other relevant factors. Credit losses for reinsurance recoverables are recorded 
through an allowance for credit losses. Estimates of expected credit losses are based on historical experience, current conditions and 
reasonable and supportable forecasts. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible are written off against the allowance. Subsequent reversals 
in credit loss estimates are recognized in earnings.  

Ceded premiums written are recorded in accordance with the applicable terms of the various reinsurance contracts and ceded 
premiums earned are charged against revenue over the period of the various reinsurance contracts. This also generally applies to 
reinstatement premiums paid to a reinsurer, which arise when contractually-specified ceded loss triggers have been breached. Ceded 
commissions reduce commissions, brokerage and other underwriting expenses and ceded losses incurred reduce net loss and loss 
adjustment expenses (“LAE”) incurred over the applicable periods of the various reinsurance contracts with third party reinsurers. If 
premiums or commissions are subject to adjustment (for example, retrospectively-rated or experience-rated), the estimated ultimate 
premium or commission is recognized over the period of the contract.  

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured 
business and consistent with the terms of the underlying reinsurance contract. 

See Note 4 for additional information on reinsurance ceded and reinsurance recoverables. 

(g) Deferred Acquisition Costs 

Acquisition costs related to unearned premiums that vary with, and are directly related to, the production of such premiums are 
deferred. Furthermore, such deferred costs: (i) represent only incremental, direct costs associated with the successful acquisition of a 
new or renewal insurance or reinsurance contract; (ii) are essential to the contract transaction; (iii) would not have been incurred had the 
contract transaction not occurred; and (iv) are related directly to the acquisition activities involving underwriting, policy issuance and 
processing. Acquisition costs principally relate to commissions. To a lesser extent, acquisition costs can include premium taxes and 
certain qualifying underwriting expenses. For insurance policies written, acquisition costs are generally incurred directly and include 
commissions, premium taxes and certain qualifying underwriting expenses. For reinsurance contracts written, acquisition costs are 
generally incurred through brokerage commissions and indirectly through ceding commissions, which are deferred. Deferred acquisition 
costs are amortized to expense as the related premiums are earned, generally over a period of one year. Deferred acquisition costs are 
reviewed at least annually to determine their recoverability from future income, including investment income. If any such costs are 
determined not to be recoverable they are charged to expense. 

Anticipated net loss and LAE and estimated remaining costs of servicing the contracts are considered when evaluating 
recoverability of deferred acquisition costs. 

 (h) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of amortization, are recorded as a consequence of business acquisitions. Goodwill 
represents the excess, if any, of the amount paid to acquire subsidiaries and other businesses over the fair value of their net assets as of 
the date of acquisition. Other intangible assets are recorded at their fair value as of the acquisition date. A significant amount of judgment 
is needed to determine the fair value as of the date of acquisition of other intangible assets and the net assets acquired in a business 
acquisition. The determination of the fair value of other intangible assets and net assets often involves the use of valuation models and 
other estimates, which involve many assumptions and variables and are inherently subjective. The fair value estimates may include the 
use of financial projections and discount rates. Other intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite useful life are amortized 
over their estimated useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization. 

Goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment in the fourth 
quarter. Goodwill and other intangible assets are also tested whenever events and changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. A significant amount of judgment is required in performing goodwill and other intangible asset 
impairment tests. These tests may include estimating the fair value of TransRe’s operating subsidiaries and other intangible assets. The 
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fair value estimates may include the use of financial projections and discount rates. If it is determined that an asset has been impaired, 
the asset is written down by the amount of the impairment, with a corresponding charge to net earnings. Subsequent reversal of any 
impairment charge is not permitted. 

With respect to goodwill, a qualitative assessment is first made to determine whether it is necessary to perform quantitative testing. 
This initial assessment includes, among other factors, consideration of: (i) past, current and projected future earnings and equity; (ii) 
recent trends and market conditions; and (iii) valuation metrics involving similar companies that are publicly-traded and acquisitions of 
similar companies, if available. If this initial qualitative assessment indicates that the fair value of an operating subsidiary may be less 
than its carrying amount, a second step is taken, involving a comparison between the estimated fair value of the operating subsidiary 
with its respective carrying amount including goodwill. Under GAAP, fair value refers to the amount for which the entire operating 
subsidiary may be bought or sold. The methods for estimating the fair value of an operating subsidiary values include asset and liability 
fair values and other valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flows and multiples of earnings or revenues. All of these methods 
involve significant estimates and assumptions. If the carrying value exceeds estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recognized 
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the operating subsidiary exceeds its estimated fair value. Any resulting impairment loss 
recognized cannot exceed the total amount of goodwill associated with the operating subsidiary.  

See Note 14 for additional information on goodwill and other intangible assets. 

(i) Income Taxes 

Alleghany files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries, including TransRe. The consolidated federal income 
tax return includes as part of its taxable income all items of income of non-U.S. subsidiaries that are subject to current U.S. income tax, 
currently pursuant to provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax 
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 
Current tax liabilities or assets are recognized for the estimated taxes payable or refundable on tax returns for the current year.

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
This determination is based upon a review of all available information, both positive and negative, including TransRe’s earnings history, 
the timing, character and amount of future earnings potential, the reversal of taxable temporary differences and the tax planning strategies 
available.

See Note 7 for additional information on income taxes. 

(j) Loss Reserves 

The reserves for loss and LAE represent management’s best estimate of the ultimate cost of all reported and unreported losses 
incurred through the balance sheet date. 

The reserves for loss and LAE include but are not limited to: (i) reports and individual case estimates received from ceding 
companies with respect to assumed reinsurance business; (ii) the accumulation of individual estimates for claims reported with respect 
to direct insurance business; (iii) estimates for IBNR claims based on past experience, modified for current trends and industry data; and 
(iv) estimates of expenses for investigating and settling claims based on past experience. The methods used to determine such estimates 
and to establish the resulting reserves are continually reviewed and updated. Any adjustments are reflected in current income. Net loss 
and LAE consist of the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims incurred within the reporting period (net of related reinsurance 
recoverable), including IBNR claims, plus changes in estimates of prior period losses. 

The estimation of the liability for unpaid loss and LAE is inherently difficult and subjective, especially in view of changing legal 
and economic environments that impact the development of loss reserves and, therefore, quantitative techniques frequently have to be 
supplemented by subjective considerations and managerial judgment. In addition, trends that have affected development of liabilities in 
the past may not necessarily occur or affect liability development to the same degree in the future. 

While the reserving process is difficult for the insurance business, the inherent uncertainties of estimating loss reserves are even 
greater for the reinsurance business, due primarily to the longer-term nature of most of the business, the diversity of development patterns 
among different types of reinsurance contracts, the necessary reliance on the ceding companies for information regarding reported claims 
and differing reserving practices among ceding companies which may change without notice. TransRe writes a significant amount of 
non-proportional assumed casualty reinsurance as well as proportional assumed reinsurance of excess liability business. Claims from 
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such classes can exhibit greater volatility over time than most other classes due to their low frequency, high severity nature and loss cost 
trends that are more difficult to predict. Net loss and LAE also include amounts for risks related to asbestos-related illness and 
environmental impairment.  

TransRe establishes reserves on its balance sheet for unpaid loss and LAE related to its property and casualty reinsurance and 
insurance contracts. As of any balance sheet date, there are claims that have not yet been reported, and some claims may not be reported 
for many years after the date a loss occurs. As a result of this historical pattern, the liability for unpaid loss and LAE includes significant 
estimates for IBNR claims. Additionally, reported claims are in various stages of the settlement process. Each claim is settled 
individually based upon its merits, and certain claims may take years to settle, especially if legal action is involved. As a result, the 
liabilities for unpaid loss and LAE include significant judgments, assumptions and estimates made by management related to the actual 
ultimate losses that will arise from the claims.  

As noted above, as of any balance sheet date, not all claims that have occurred have been reported to TransRe, and if reported 
may not have been settled. The time period between the occurrence of a loss and the time it is settled is referred to as the “claim tail.” 
Reported losses for the shorter-tailed classes, such as property, generally reach the ultimate level of incurred losses in a relatively short 
period of time and as such, are only relevant for the more recent accident years. 

Casualty claims can have a very long claim tail, in certain situations extending for many years. In addition, casualty claims are 
more susceptible to litigation and the legal environment and can be significantly affected by changing contract interpretations, all of 
which contribute to extending the claim tail. For long-tail casualty lines of business, estimating the ultimate liabilities for unpaid loss 
and LAE is a more complex process and depends on a number of factors, including the line and volume of the business involved. 

TransRe’s loss reserve review processes use actuarial methods that vary by operating subsidiary and line of business and produce 
point estimates for each class of business. The actuarial methods used include the following methods: 

•  Reported Loss Development Method: a reported loss development pattern is calculated based on historical loss 
development data, and this pattern is then used to project the latest evaluation of cumulative reported losses for each 
accident year or underwriting year, as appropriate, to ultimate levels; 

•  Paid Loss Development Method: a paid loss development pattern is calculated based on historical paid loss development 
data, and this pattern is then used to project the latest evaluation of cumulative paid losses for each accident year or 
underwriting year, as appropriate, to ultimate levels; 

•  Expected Loss Ratio Method: expected loss ratios are applied to premiums earned, based on historical company experience, 
or historical insurance industry results when company experience is deemed not to be sufficient; and 

•  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method: the results from the Expected Loss Ratio Method are essentially blended with either the 
Reported Loss Development Method or the Paid Development Method. 

See Notes 5 and 9(c) for additional information on loss reserves. 

(k) Book Value Units 

The cost resulting from book value units awarded to certain employees is accrued over the period of the employee’s service in a 
systematic and rational manner. 

(l) Senior Notes 

The senior notes are carried at unpaid principal balance including unamortized premium.

See Note 6 for additional information on the senior notes. 

(m) Currency Translation 

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates. Income and 
expense accounts are translated at average exchange rates for the year. The resulting unrealized currency translation gain or loss for 
functional currencies is recorded, net of tax, in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of stockholders’ equity. 

Transaction gains and losses on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded as a component of net realized 
capital gains during the period in which they occur. 
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(n) Reclassification 

Certain prior year amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the 2020 presentation of the financial statements. 

(o) Recent Accounting Standards 

Recently Adopted 

In February 2016, the FASB issued guidance on leases. Under this guidance, a lessee is required to recognize lease liabilities 
and corresponding right-of-use assets for leases with terms of more than one year, whereas under the prior guidance, a lessee is only 
required to recognize assets and liabilities for those leases qualifying as capital leases. This guidance also requires new disclosures 
about the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The accounting by lessors remains largely unchanged. 
This guidance became effective in the first quarter of 2019 for public entities, with early adoption permitted. A modified retrospective 
transition approach was elected for all leases in existence as of, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented in the financial statements. TransRe adopted this guidance in the first quarter of 2019 and the implementation did not have a 
material impact on its results of operations and financial condition. As of January 1, 2019, TransRe’s right-of-use asset was 
approximately $82 million and the corresponding lease liability was $98 million. See Note 9(b) for further information on TransRe’s 
leases.  

In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance on credit losses. Under this guidance, a company is required to measure all expected 
credit losses on loans, reinsurance recoverables and other financial assets accounted for at cost or amortized cost, as applicable, over 
the remaining expected life of such assets. Estimates of expected credit losses are to be based on historical experience, current 
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Under former FASB guidance, credit lossess on these assets generally required a 
company to recognize credit losses when it was a probable that a loss had been incurred. Credit losses for securities accounted for on 
an available for sale (“AFS”) basis are to be measured in a manner similar to GAAP as applied under former guidance and cannot 
exceed the amount by which the fair value is less than the amortized cost, although the new guidance removes the length of time a 
security has been in an unrealized loss position as a possible indication of a credit impairment. Credit losses for all financial assets are 
to be recorded through an allowance for credit losses. Subsequent reversals in credit loss estimates are permitted and are to be 
recognized in earnings. This guidance also requires new disclosures about the significant estimates and judgments used in estimating 
credit losses, as well as the credit quality of financial assets. This guidance was effective in the first quarter of 2020 for public 
companies, with early adoption permitted. TransRe adopted this guidance in the first quarter of 2020. The adoption of this guidance 
resulting in a cumulative effective of new accounting pronouncements which reduced stockholder’s equity by $1.5 million as of 
January 1, 2020. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued guidance that simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill. Under this guidance, if 
an initial qualitative assessment indicates that the fair value of an operating subsidiary may be less than its carrying amount, an 
impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the operating subsidiary exceeds its estimated fair 
value. Any resulting impairment loss recognized cannot exceed the total amount of goodwill associated with the operating subsidiary. 
This guidance is effective in the first quarter of 2020 for public companies, with early adoption permitted. TransRe adopted this 
guidance in the first quarter of 2020 and the implementation did not have a material impact on its results of operations and financial 
condition. See Note 14 for further information on TransRe’s goodwill.  

In August 2017, the FASB issued guidance that simplifies the requirements to achieve hedge accounting, better reflects the 
economic results of hedging in the financial statements and improves the alignment between hedge accounting and a company’s risk 
management activities. This guidance is effective in the first quarter of 2019 for public entities, with early adoption permitted. 
TransRe adopted this guidance in the first quarter of 2019 and the implementation did not have a material impact on its results of 
operations and financial condition.  

In August 2018, the FASB issued guidance that changes the financial statement disclosure requirements for measuring fair 
value. With respect to financial instruments classified as “Level 3” in the fair value disclosure hierarchy, the guidance requires certain 
additional disclosures for public companies related to amounts included in other comprehensive income and significant unobservable 
inputs used in the valuation, while removing disclosure requirements related to an entity’s overall valuation processes. The guidance 
also removes certain disclosure requirements related to transfers between financial instruments classified as “Level 1” and “Level 2” 
and provides clarification on certain other existing disclosure requirements. This guidance was effective for interim and annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted with respect to any eliminated or modified disclosures. TransRe 
adopted this guidance in the first quarter of 2020 and the implementation did not have a material impact on its results of operations 
and financial condition. See Note 2 for further information on the fair value of TransRe’s financial instruments. 



TRANSATLANTIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Alleghany Corporation)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

13 

In March 2020, the FASB issued guidance to expedite and simplify the accounting associated with the anticipated migration 
away from the widely-used London Inter-bank Offered Rate and other similar rates as benchmark interest rates after 2021.  Under pre-
existing GAAP, such modifications made to: (i) loans and certain other contracts would require re-assessments of the accounting for 
those contracts, such as whether they were extinguished and remeasured from an accounting perspective; and (ii) derivative contracts 
may cause a change in accounting, such as a possible dedesignation of hedge accounting. This new guidance largely eliminates these 
requirements as a result of this migration to one or more new benchmark rates and is generally applicable for contract modifications 
made prior to December 31, 2022. TransRe adopted this guidance in March 2020 and the implementation did not have an impact on its 
results of operations and financial condition. 

2. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The following table presents the carrying value and estimated fair value of TransRe’s consolidated financial instruments as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

Carrying 

Value Fair Value

Carrying 

Value Fair Value
(in millions)

Assets

Investments (excluding equity method investments)(1)  $    13,229.0  $    13,229.0  $    12,034.8  $    12,034.8 

Liabilities

Senior notes(2) 388.8$          557.4$          389.8$          521.9$          

December 31, 2019December 31, 2020

(1) This table includes debt and equity securities, as well as partnership and non-marketable equity investments, if any, carried at fair value that are included in other 
invested assets. This table excludes investments accounted for using the equity method and commercial mortgage loans that are carried at unpaid principal balance. 
The fair value of short-term investments approximates amortized cost. The fair value of all other categories of investments is discussed in Note 1(c). 

(2) See Note 6 for additional information on the Senior Notes.  
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The following tables present TransRe’s financial instruments measured at fair value and the level of the fair value hierarchy of 
inputs used as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

As of December 31, 2020
Equity securities:

Common stock 1,372.4$           -$            -$            1,372.4$     
Preferred stock - 3.0 1.3 4.3

Total equity securities 1,372.4 3.0 1.3 1,376.7

Debt securities:
U.S. Government obligations - 1,288.6 - 1,288.6
Municipal bonds - 1,615.5 - 1,615.5
Foreign government obligations - 879.6 - 879.6
U.S. corporate bonds - 2,096.6 498.0 2,594.6
Foreign corporate bonds - 1,106.6 151.3 1,257.9
Mortgage and asset-backed securities: 

RMBS(1) - 1,997.6 2.5 2,000.1
CMBS - 594.8 3.9 598.7
Other asset-backed securities(2) - 714.0 596.3 1,310.3

Total debt securities - 10,293.3 1,252.0 11,545.3
Short-term investments - 307.0 - 307.0
Other invested assets - - - -

Total 1,372.4$           10,603.3$   1,253.3$     13,229.0$   

Senior Notes -$                  557.4$        -$            557.4$        
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

As of December 31, 2019
Equity securities:

Common stock 1,533.6$     -$           -$           1,533.6$     
Preferred stock - 2.1 2.0 4.1

Total equity securities 1,533.6 2.1 2.0 1,537.7

Debt securities:
U.S. Government obligations - 1,098.7 - 1,098.7
Municipal bonds - 1,466.5 - 1,466.5
Foreign government obligations - 690.6 - 690.6
U.S. corporate bonds - 1,862.8 497.0 2,359.8
Foreign corporate bonds - 1,151.1 141.8 1,292.9
Mortgage and asset-backed securities: 

RMBS(1) - 1,379.9 1.9 1,381.8
CMBS - 571.1 3.8 574.9
Other asset-backed securities(2) - 802.7 548.5 1,351.2

Total debt securities - 9,023.4 1,193.0 10,216.4
Short-term investments - 280.7 - 280.7
Other invested assets - - - -

Total 1,533.6$     9,306.2$     1,195.0$     12,034.8$   

Senior Notes -$           521.9$       -$           521.9$       

(1) Primarily includes government agency pass-through securities guaranteed by a government agency or government sponsored enterprise, among other types of 
RMBS. 

(2) Includes $578.2 million and $532.8 million of collateralized loan obligations as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

In 2020, there were transfers of $16.6 million of securities out of Level 3 that were principally due to an increase in observable 
inputs related to the valuation of such assets. Of the $16.6 million of transfers, $10.3 million related to other asset-backed securities and 
$6.3 million related to foreign corporate bonds. 

In 2019, there were transfers of $22.2 million of securities out of Level 3 that were principally due to an increase in observable 
inputs related to the valuation of such assets. Of the $22.2 million of transfers, $16.5 million related to other asset-backed securities, 
$1.8 million related to U.S. corporate bonds, $1.6 million related to foreign corporate bonds, $2.1 million related to preferred stock and 
$0.2 million related to CMBS. 

In 2019, there were transfers of $19.5 million of securities into Level 3 that were principally due to a decrease in observable inputs 
related to the valuations of such securities.  Of the $19.5 million of transfers, $14.7 million related to foreign corporate bonds, $3.9 
million related to other asset-backed securities and $0.9 million related to U.S. corporate bonds.  
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The following tables present reconciliations of the changes during 2020 and 2019 in Level 3 assets measured at fair value:  

Year Ended December 31, 2020
C o m mo n

Sto ck

P re ferred

Sto c k

U.S.

C o rpo ra te  

Bo nds

F o re ign 

Co rpo ra te  

Bo nds R MB S CMB S

Othe r

As s e t-

bac ked

S ecurities

Other 

Inves te d 

As s e ts (1) To ta l

Balance as of January 1, 2020 -$     2.0$    497.0$   141.8$   1.9$       3.8$       548.5$    -$       1,195.0$   

Net realized/unrealized gains (losses) 

included in: 

Net  earnings(2) - - (3.8) - - - (6.3) - (10.1)

Other comprehensive income - (0.7) 16.6 5.7 0.1 0.1 3.2 - 25.0

Purchases - - 29.3 20.6 0.9 - 160.0 - 210.8

Sales - - (2.0) (0.8) - - (41.7) - (44.5)

Issuances - - - - - - - - -

Settlements - - (39.1) (9.7) (0.4) - (57.1) - (106.3)

Transfers into Level 3 - - - - - - - - -

Transfers out  of Level 3 - - - (6.3) - - (10.3) - (16.6)

Balance as of December 31, 2020 -$     1.3$    498.0$   151.3$   2.5$       3.9$       596.3$    -$       1,253.3$   

($ in millions)

Mortgage and asset-backed

Equity Securit ies Debt Securit ies

Year Ended December 31, 2019
Co m mo n

Sto c k

P re fe rred

S to ck

U.S .

Co rpo ra te  

Bo nds

F o reign 

Co rpo ra te  

B o nds RMBS C MBS

Other

As s et-

ba cked

S ec urities

Othe r 

Inves ted 

As s ets (1) To ta l

Balance as of January 1, 2019 -$     5.0$    376.9$   109.4$   -$       -$       892.3$    -$       1,383.6$   

Net  realized/unrealized gains (losses) 

included in: 

Net earnings(2) - (1.2) (6.5) (5.9) - - (1.0) (0.1) (14.7)

Other comprehensive income - - 34.6 6.5 0.1 - 11.7 - 52.9

Purchases - 0.3 123.9 33.9 1.8 4.0 69.7 0.1 233.7

Sales - - - (5.6) - - (332.3) - (337.9)

Issuances - - - - - - - - -

Sett lements - - (31.0) (9.6) - - (79.3) - (119.9)

Transfers into Level 3 - - 0.9 14.7 - - 3.9 - 19.5

Transfers out  of Level 3 - (2.1) (1.8) (1.6) - (0.2) (16.5) - (22.2)

Balance as of December 31, 2019 -$     2.0$    497.0$   141.8$   1.9$       3.8$       548.5$    -$       1,195.0$   

($ in millions)

Mortgage and asset-backed

Equity Securit ies Debt Securities

(1) Includes partnership and/or non-marketable equity investments accounted for at fair value.  
(2) There were no credit losses recorded in net earnings related to Level 3 instruments still held as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

Net unrealized losses related to Level 3 assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 were not material. 

See Note 1(c) for TransRe’s accounting policy on fair value. 
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3. Investments 

(a) Unrealized Gains and Losses 

The following tables present the amortized cost or cost and the fair value of AFS securities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:  

Amortized 

Cost 

or Cost

Gross

Unrealized 

Gains

Gross

Unrealized 

Losses

Allowance for 

Credit Losses Fair Value

($ in millions)

As of December 31, 2020

Debt securities:

U.S. Government obligations 1,247.7$       42.4$            (1.5)$             -$              1,288.6$       

Municipal bonds 1,511.3 104.7 (0.5) - 1,615.5

Foreign government obligations 846.6 33.5 (0.5) - 879.6

U.S. corporate bonds 2,404.2 194.7 (2.7) (1.6) 2,594.6

Foreign corporate bonds 1,207.1 51.5 (0.6) (0.1) 1,257.9

Mortgage and asset-backed securities:

RMBS 1,942.4 57.9 (0.2) - 2,000.1

CMBS 570.4 32.5 (4.2) - 598.7

Other asset-backed securities
(1) 

1,298.5 25.3 (13.5) - 1,310.3

Total debt securities 11,028.2 542.5 (23.7) (1.7) 11,545.3

Short-term investments 307.1 - - - 307.1
Total  11,335.3$     542.5$          (23.7)$           (1.7)$             11,852.4$     

Amortized 

Cost  

or Cost

Gross

Unrealized 

Gains

Gross

Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

($ in millions)

As of December 31, 2019

Debt securities:

U.S. Government obligations 1,082.6$       18.7$            (2.6)$             1,098.7$       

Municipal bonds 1,391.2 75.9 (0.6) 1,466.5

Foreign government obligations 675.9 16.3 (1.6) 690.6

U.S. corporate bonds 2,260.2 101.1 (1.5) 2,359.8

Foreign corporate bonds 1,265.9 29.7 (2.7) 1,292.9

Mortgage and asset-backed securities:

RMBS 1,342.1 40.5 (0.8) 1,381.8

CMBS 559.3 16.6 (1.0) 574.9

Other asset-backed securities
(1) 

1,350.7 12.6 (12.1) 1,351.2

Total debt securities 9,927.9 311.4 (22.9) 10,216.4

Short-term investments 280.7 - - 280.7
Total  10,208.6$     311.4$          (22.9)$           10,497.1$     

(1) Includes $578.2 million and $532.8 million of collateralized loan obligations as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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(b) Contractual Maturity 

The following table presents the amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity as of December 
31, 2020. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations 
with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Amortized Cost Fair Value
(in millions)

Short-term investments due in one year or less 307.1$         307.1$         

Mortgage and asset-backed securities(1)  $      3,811.3  $      3,909.1 
Debt securities with maturity dates:

One year or less 541.6 546.3
Over one through five years 3,024.1 3,147.5
Over five through ten years 2,172.2 2,321.7
Over ten years 1,479.0 1,620.7

Total debt securities 11,028.2$    11,545.3$    

(1) Mortgage and asset-backed securities by their nature do not generally have single maturity dates.  

(c) Net Investment Income 

The following table presents net investment income for 2020 and 2019: 

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019

(in millions)

Interest income 308.6$       343.9$       
Dividend income 14.3 18.5
Investment expenses (20.9) (22.5)

Equity results of Pillar Investments
(1)

21.1 15.2
Other investment income 7.1 16.8

Total 330.2$       371.9$       

(1) See Note 3(i) for discussion of the Pillar Investments, as defined therein. 

As of December 31, 2020, non-income producing invested assets were insignificant. 

(d) Change in the Fair Value of Equity Securities 

The proceeds from sales of equity securities were $758.5 million and $921.7 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

The following table presents increases in the fair value of equity securities for 2020 and 2019:  

Ye a r Ende d  De c e mbe r 31,

2020 2019

(in millions )

Change in the fair value of equity securities sold during the period 91.3$                   152.4$                 

Change in the fair value of equity securities held at the end of the period (35.9) 233.7

Change in the fair value of equity securities 55.4$                   386.1$                 

(e) Realized Gains and Losses 

The proceeds from sales of debt securities were $3.0 billion and $3.3 billion for 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
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Net realized capital gains in 2020 and 2019 primarily reflect sales of debt securities and net foreign currency transaction gains 
(losses).  

The following table presents the components of net realized capital gains (losses) for 2020 and 2019:  

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

(in millions)

Gross realized capital gains 71.6$            41.5$            
Gross realized capital losses (25.8) (12.8)
Net foreign currency transaction gains (losses) (11.1) 10.3
Other 0.2 2.3

Net realized capital gains (losses) 34.9$           41.3$           

Gross realized loss amounts exclude change in allowance for credit losses, as discussed below. 

(f) Credit quality for AFS securities and other than temporary impairments

TransRe holds its debt securities as AFS and, as such, these securities are recorded at fair value. TransRe continually monitors the 
difference between amortized cost and the estimated fair value of its debt investments. The analysis of a security’s decline in value is 
performed in its functional currency. 

Beginning January 1, 2020, credit losses for AFS securities are recorded through an allowance for credit losses. Changes in the 
allowance for credit losses are recorded for (or as a reversal of) credit losses on AFS securities. Any portion of a decline in fair value 
related to a debt security that is believed to arise from factors other than credit is recorded as a component of other comprehensive 
income rather than charged against earnings. See Note 1(o) for additional information about the adoption of new accounting guidance 
related to credit losses. 

Prior to January 1, 2020, if the decline was deemed temporary, TransRe recorded the decline as an unrealized loss in stockholder’s 
equity. If the decline was deemed to be other than temporary, TransRe wrote its amortized cost-basis down to the fair value of the 
security and recorded an OTTI loss on its statement of earnings. In addition, any portion of such decline related to a debt security that 
was believed to arise from factors other than credit was recorded as a component of other comprehensive income rather than charged 
against earnings. 

Debt securities in an unrealized loss position are evaluated for credit losses if they meet any of the following criteria: (i) they are 
trading at a discount of at least 20 percent to amortized cost and have a credit rating below investment grade or are not rated; (ii) there 
has been a negative credit or news event with respect to the issuer that could indicate the existence of a credit loss; or (iii) TransRe 
intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that TransRe will sell, the debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis.  

If TransRe intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that TransRe will sell, a debt security before recovery of its amortized cost 
basis, the total amount of the unrealized loss position is recognized as a credit loss in earnings. To the extent that a debt security that is 
in an unrealized loss position is not impaired based on the preceding, TransRe will consider a debt security to be impaired when it 
believes it to be probable that TransRe will not be able to collect the entire amortized cost basis. For debt securities in an unrealized loss 
position as of the end of each quarter, TransRe develops a best estimate of the present value of expected cash flows. If the results of the 
cash flow analysis indicate that TransRe will not recover the full amount of its amortized cost basis in the debt security, TransRe records 
a credit loss in earnings equal to the difference between the present value of expected cash flows and the amortized cost basis of the 
debt security. If applicable, the difference between the total unrealized loss position on the debt security and the total loss recognized in 
earnings is the non-credit related portion, which is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. 

In developing the cash flow analyses for debt securities, TransRe considers various factors for the different categories of debt 
securities. For municipal bonds, TransRe takes into account the taxing power of the issuer, source of revenue, credit risk and 
enhancements and pre-refunding. For mortgage and asset-backed securities, TransRe discounts its best estimate of future cash flows at 
an effective rate equal to the original effective yield of the security or, in the case of floating rate securities, at the current coupon. 
TransRe’s models include assumptions about prepayment speeds, default and delinquency rates, underlying collateral (if any), credit 
ratings, credit enhancements and other observable market data. For corporate bonds, TransRe reviews business prospects, credit ratings 
and available information from asset managers and rating agencies for individual securities.
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Change in allowance for credit losses on AFS securities in 2020 reflect $7.1 million of unrealized losses on debt securities, 
primarily related to the energy sector and lower-quality corporate bonds in other sectors due to a significant decline in their fair value 
relative to their amortized costs in the spring of 2020, net of a subsequent reduction of the allowance for credit losses on AFS 
securities in the remainder of 2020, arising from the improved bond market conditions and bond sales. 

OTTI losses in 2019 reflect $19.1 million of unrealized losses on debt securities that were deemed to be other than temporary 
and, as such, were required to be charged against earnings. The determination that unrealized losses on these debt securities were other 
than temporary was primarily due to deterioration of creditworthiness of the issuer and significant declines in fair value.The following 
table presents a rollforward of TransRe’s allowance for credit losses on AFS securities for 2020. 

Year Ended December 31,

2020
Allowance for Credit Losses (in millions)

Beginning as of January 1, 2020 -$                                  
Beginning balance - cumulative effect of an accounting change
Provision for credit losses (7.1)
Charge-offs 5.4
Recoveries -
Balance as of December 31, 2020 (1.7)$                                 

The gross unrealized investment losses for debt securities as of December 31, 2020 were deemed to be temporary, based on, 
among other factors: (i) the relative magnitude to which the fair value of these investments had been below cost were not indicative of 
a credit loss; (ii) the absence of compelling evidence that would cause TransRe to call into question the financial condition or near-
term business prospects of the issuer of the security; and (iii) TransRe’s ability and intent to hold the security for a period of time 
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery.  

TransRe’s methodology for assessing credit losses contains inherent risks and uncertainties which could include, but are not 
limited to, incorrect assumptions about financial condition, liquidity or future prospects, inadequacy of any underlying collateral and 
unfavorable changes in economic conditions or social trends, interest rates or credit ratings.  

TransRe’s consolidated investment portfolio consists mainly of highly rated and liquid debt and equity securities listed on 
national securities exchanges. The overall credit quality of the debt securities portfolio is measured using the lowest rating of three 
large, reputable rating agencies. In this regard, the overall weighted-average credit quality rating of TransRe’s debt securities portfolio 
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, was AA-. Although a portion of TransRe’s debt securities, which consist predominantly of 
municipal bonds, is insured by third-party financial guaranty insurance companies, the impact of such insurance was not significant to 
the debt securities’ credit quality rating as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

The following table presents the ratings of TransRe’s debt securities as of December 31, 2020: 
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U.S. Government obligations  $ 5.9             $ 1,282.7   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ 1,288.6

Municipal bonds 133.4    1,078.1 321.0 75.6 7.4          1,615.5

Foreign government obligations 385.8 405.1 87.5 1.2 - 879.6

U.S. corporate bonds 3.3 108.7    1,070.9    1,159.7    252.0    2,594.6

Foreign corporate bonds 235.3 103.2 550.0 348.4 21.0    1,257.9

Mortgage and asset-backed securities:   

RMBS 2.5              1,997.6 - - -         2,000.1

CMBS 178.1 281.8 136.7 2.1 - 598.7

Other asset-backed securities 570.1 350.5 162.7 215.8 11.2    1,310.3

Total debt securities  $ 1,514.4   $ 5,607.7   $ 2,328.8   $ 1,802.8   $ 291.6   $ 11,545.3

Percentage of debt securities 13.1 %   48.6 %   20.2 %   15.6 %   2.5       %   100.0 %

Ratings as of December 31, 2020

 AAA / Aaa   AA / Aa A   BBB / Baa Total

($ in millions)

Below

BBB / Baa

or Not

Rated(1)

(1) Consists of $105.2 million of securities rated BB / Ba, $127.8 million of securities rated B, $17.1 million of securities rated CCC, $0.3 million of securities rated 
CC, $0.6 million of securities rated below CC and $40.6 million of not rated securities.

(g) Aging of Gross Unrealized Losses 

The following tables present gross unrealized losses and related fair values for TransRe’s AFS securities for which an allowance 
for credit losses has not been recorded, grouped by duration of time in a continuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2020 
and 2019:  

Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses

($ in millions)

As of December 31, 2020

Debt securities:

U.S. Government obligations 255.9$        (1.5)$        -$            -$         255.9$        (1.5)$        

Municipal bonds 25.2 (0.5) - - 25.2 (0.5)

Foreign government obligations 132.8 (0.5) - - 132.8 (0.5)

U.S. corporate bonds 138.4 (2.7) 1.6 - 140.0 (2.7)

Foreign corporate bonds 35.6 (0.2) 14.6 (0.4) 50.2 (0.6)

Mortgage and asset-backed securities:

RMBS 97.5 (0.2) - - 97.5 (0.2)

CMBS 60.6 (4.2) 3.8 - 64.4 (4.2)

Other asset-backed securities 289.6 (6.0) 343.6 (7.5) 633.2 (13.5)

Total debt securities 1,035.6$     (15.8)$      363.6$        (7.9)$        1,399.2$     (23.7)$      

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
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Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Gross 

Unrealized 

Losses

($ in millions)

As of December 31, 2019

Debt securities:

U.S. Government obligations 112.0$     (1.9)$     93.7$       (0.7)$     205.7$     (2.6)$     

Municipal bonds 27.2 (0.6) 3.5 - 30.7 (0.6)

Foreign government obligations 198.5 (1.2) 33.8 (0.4) 232.3 (1.6)

U.S. corporate bonds 76.9 (1.0) 18.9 (0.5) 95.8 (1.5)

Foreign corporate bonds 202.9 (2.1) 64.6 (0.6) 267.5 (2.7)

Mortgage and asset-backed securities:

RMBS 48.7 (0.3) 47.6 (0.5) 96.3 (0.8)

CMBS 84.7 (1.0) 1.2 - 85.9 (1.0)

Other asset-backed securities 222.6 (1.6) 447.6 (10.5) 670.2 (12.1)

Total debt securities 973.5$     (9.7)$     710.9$     (13.2)$   1,684.4$  (22.9)$   

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

As of December 31, 2020, TransRe held a total of 455 debt securities that were in an unrealized loss position, of which 103 were 
in an unrealized loss position continuously for 12 months or more. The unrealized losses associated with these debt securities consisted 
of losses as disclosed in the tables above. 

As of December 31, 2020, the vast majority of TransRe’s debt securities were rated investment grade, with approximately 2.5 
percent of debt securities having issuer credit ratings that were below investment grade or not rated, compared with 3.7 percent as of 
December 31, 2019.

 (h) Statutory Deposits 

Investments with fair value of approximately $2.3 billion and $2.3 billion as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, the 
substantial majority of which were debt securities and equity securities, were deposited with governmental authorities as required by 
law.  

(i) Investments in Certain Other Invested Assets

In December 2012, TransRe obtained an ownership interest in Pillar Capital Holdings Limited (“Pillar Holdings”), a Bermuda-
based insurance asset manager focused on collateralized reinsurance and catastrophe insurance-linked securities. Additionally, TransRe 
invested in limited partnership funds managed by Pillar Holdings (the “Pillar Funds”). The objective of the Pillar Funds is to create 
portfolios with attractive risk-reward characteristics and low correlation with other asset classes, using the extensive reinsurance and 
capital market experience of the principals of Pillar Holdings. TransRe has concluded that both Pillar Holdings and the Pillar Funds 
(collectively, the “Pillar Investments”) represent variable interest entities and that TransRe is not the primary beneficiary, as it does not 
have the ability to direct the activities that most significantly impact each entity’s economic performance. Therefore, the Pillar 
Investments are not consolidated and are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. TransRe’s potential maximum loss in 
the Pillar Investments is limited to its cumulative net investment. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019,TransRe’s carrying value in the 
Pillar Investments, as determined under the equity method of accounting, was $171.5 million and $203.9 million, respectively, which is 
net of returns of capital received from the Pillar Investments.  

In 2014, TransRe acquired a 24.9 percent equity interest in CapSpecialty, Inc. (“CapSpecialty”), a subsidiary of Alleghany, for 
consideration totaling $73.8 million, consisting of cash and TransRe’s ownership interest in Professional Risk Management Services, 
Inc. (“PRMS”). In 2019, TransRe dividended its 24.9 percent equity interest in CapSpecialty (with a fair value of $101.0 million) to 
Alleghany. TransRe’s investment in CapSpecialty was accounted for as an equity-method investment and was included in other invested 
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
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(j) Investments in Commercial Mortgage Loans

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the carrying value of TransRe’s commercial mortgage loan portfolio was $469.2 million and 
$480.3 million, respectively, representing the unpaid principal balance on the loans, less allowance for credit losses. The estimated fair 
value of the commercial mortgage loan portfolio approximated carrying value of as December 31, 2020 and 2019. The commercial 
mortgage loan portfolio consists primarily of first mortgages on commercial properties in major metropolitan areas in the U.S. The loans 
earn interest at fixed- and floating-rates, and mature in two to ten years from loan origination.  As of December 31, 2020, the vast 
majority of loans in TransRe’s portfolio were originated in the 2016 through 2019 years. 

The principal amounts of the loans were no more than approximately two-thirds of the property’s appraised value at the time the 
loans were made and the estimated fair value of underlying collateral was approximately double that of the commercial mortgage loan 
portfolio carrying value as of December 31, 2020.  Fair value estimates of underlying collateral are updated on a rolling basis at least 
annually, with a portion of the portfolio updated each quarter. As of December 31, 2020, there was no loan in default or in arrears.  

The following table presents a rollforward of Alleghany’s allowance for credit losses on commercial mortgage loans for 2020: 

Year Ended December 31,

2020
Allowance for Credit Losses (in millions)

Beginning as of January 1, 2020 -$                                   
Beginning balance - cumulative effect of an accounting change (0.4)
Provision for credit losses (0.7)
Charge-offs -
Recoveries -
Balance as of December 31, 2020 (1.1)$                                  

4. Reinsurance Ceded 

(a) Overview

TransRe reinsures portions of the risks it underwrites in order to reduce the effect of individual or aggregate exposure to losses, 
manage capacity, protect capital resources, reduce volatility in specific lines of business, improve risk-adjusted portfolio returns, and 
enable TransRe to increase gross premium writings and risk capacity without requiring additional capital. TransRe purchases reinsurance 
from highly-rated third party reinsurers. If the assuming reinsurers are unable or unwilling to meet the obligations assumed under the 
applicable reinsurance agreements, TransRe would remain liable for such reinsurance portion not paid by these reinsurers. As such, 
funds, trust agreements and letters of credit are held to collateralize a portion of TransRe’s reinsurance recoverables and TransRe 
reinsures portions of the risks it underwrites or assumes with multiple reinsurance programs. 

TransRe enters into various retrocession arrangements, including property catastrophe retrocession contracts, to manage the 
effects of individual or aggregate exposure to losses, reduce volatility in specific lines of business, improve risk-adjusted portfolio 
returns, strengthen its market position and enhance capital efficiency. These include excess-of-loss and quota share treaties in both 
traditional rated and collateralized form as well as catastrophe bonds. TransRe’s retrocession protections generally have a one-year 
term and renewal dates occur throughout the year, with the majority renewing at January 1. The catastrophe bonds, however, have a 
four-year term, with maturities in 2022 and 2023. 
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(b) Reinsurance Recoverables 

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are recognized in a manner consistent with the claims liabilities associated with the 
reinsurance placement and presented on the balance sheet as reinsurance recoverables, and are recorded after an allowance for credit 
losses. Such balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are presented in the table below: 

As of December 31,
2020 2019

(in millions)

Reinsurance recoverables on paid losses 37.4$          39.3$          
Ceded outstanding loss and LAE 830.7 907.5
Reinsurance recoverables, before allowance for credit losses 868.1 946.8
Allowance for credit losses (2.3) -

Total reinsurance recoverables 865.8$        946.8$        

The following table presents information regarding concentration of TransRe’s reinsurance recoverables and the ratings profile of 
its reinsurers as of December 31, 2020: 

Reinsurer
(1)

Rating
(2)

Amount
(dollars in millions)

Kane SAC, Ltd Rondout Segregated-Account(3) Not rated 124.5$          14.4 %

Syndicates at Lloyd's of London A (Excellent) 90.5 10.4

Third Point Reinsurance Ltd Group A- (Excellent) 79.1 9.1

Kane SAC, Ltd Bowery Segregated-Account(3) Not rated 62.1 7.2

Kane SAC, Ltd Latigo Segregated-Account(3) Not rated 42.9 4.9

All other reinsurers 469.0 54.0

Total reinsurance recoverables, before allowance for credit losses (4)
868.1 100.0 %

Allowance for credit losses (2.3)
Total 865.8$         

Secured reinsurance recoverables(3)
528.8$          60.9 %

Percentage

(1) Reinsurance recoverables reflect amounts due from one or more reinsurance subsidiaries of the listed company.  
(2) Represents the A.M. Best Company, Inc. financial strength rating for the applicable reinsurance subsidiary or subsidiaries from which the reinsurance recoverable 

is due.  
(3) Represents reinsurance recoverables secured by funds held, trust agreements or letters of credit.  
(4) Approximately 55 percent of TransRe’s reinsurance recoverables balance as of December 31, 2020 were due from reinsurers having an A.M. Best Company, 

Inc. financial strength rating of A- (Excellent) or higher, with a majority of the other reinsurance recoverables being secured by funds held, trust agreements or 
letters of credit.  

The following table presents a rollforward of TransRe’s allowance for credit losses on reinsurance recoverables for 2020: 

Year Ended December 31,

2020
Allowance for Credit Losses (in millions)

Beginning as of January 1, 2020 -$                                   
Beginning balance - cumulative effect of an accounting change (1.2)
Provision for credit losses (1.1)
Charge-offs -
Recoveries -
Balance as of December 31, 2020 (2.3)$                                  

Reinsured loss and LAE ceded included in TransRe’s consolidated statements of earnings were $160.1 million and $353.2 million 
for 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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(c) Premiums Written and Earned 

The following table presents property and casualty premiums written and earned for 2020 and 2019: 

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

(in millions)

Gross premiums written 5,237.3$       4,945.7$       
Ceded premiums written            (392.3)            (450.7)
Net premiums written 4,845.0$      4,495.0$      

Gross premiums earned 5,041.7$       4,800.4$       
Ceded premiums earned            (397.0)            (473.4)
Net premiums earned 4,644.7$      4,327.0$      

5. Liability for Loss and LAE 

(a) Liability Rollforward

The following table presents the activity in the liability for loss and LAE in 2020 and 2019: 

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2018

(in millions)

Reserves as of January 1, 9,323.8$     9,442.2$     
Less: reinsurance recoverables(1) 907.5 963.7
Net reserves as of January 1, 8,416.3 8,478.5

Other (4.2) (2.1)

Incurred loss, net of reinsurance, related to:
Current year 3,593.8 3,156.9
Prior years (206.9) (195.8)

Total incurred loss and LAE, net of reinsurance 3,386.9 2,961.1

Paid loss, net of reinsurance, related to:(2)

Current year 772.4 762.1
Prior years 2,134.2 2,251.1

Total paid loss and LAE, net of reinsurance 2,906.6 3,013.2

Foreign exchange effect 90.9 (8.0)

Reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, as of December 31 8,983.3 8,416.3
Reinsurance recoverables as of December 31(1) 830.7 907.5
Reserves, gross of reinsurance recoverables, as of December 31 9,814.0$     9,323.8$     

(1) Reinsurance recoverables in this table include only ceded loss and LAE reserves.  
(2) Included paid loss and LAE, net of reinsurance, related to commutations 

Gross loss and LAE reserves as of December 31, 2020 increased from December 31, 2019, primarily reflecting the impact of 
growing net premiums earned and catastrophe losses incurred in 2020, partially offset by payments on catastrophe losses incurred 
primarily in 2017, 2018 and 2019 and favorable prior accident year loss reserve development. The 2020 catastrophe losses, net of 
reinsurance, include $391.8 million related to the COVID-19 global pandemic (the “Pandemic”), $63.6 million related to Hurricane 
Laura, $22.7 million related to Hurricane Sally and $19.1 million related to earthquakes in Puerto Rico. 
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Gross loss and LAE reserves as of December 31, 2019 decreased from December 31, 2018, primarily reflecting payments on 
catastrophe losses incurred in 2017 and 2018 and favorable prior accident year loss reserve development, partially offset by the impact 
of growing net premiums earned and catastrophe losses incurred in 2019.  The 2019 catastrophe losses, net of reinsurance, primarily 
include $168.2 million related to Typhoon Hagibis, $87.4 million related to Typhoon Faxai, $22.3 million related to civil unrest in 
Chile and $13.6 million related to Hurricane Dorian. 

(b) Liability Development

The following table presents the (favorable) unfavorable prior accident year loss reserve development for 2020 and 2019: 

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

Property: (in millions)

Catastrophe events (43.3)$           (1) (6.8)$             (2) 

Non- catastrophe              (33.6)  (3)              (39.4)  (4) 

Total property (76.9) (46.2)

Casualty & other:

The Malpractice Treaties(5) - (1.4)
Catastrophe events (5.9) (4.4)

Other            (124.1)  (6)            (143.8)  (7) 

Total casualty & other (130.0) (149.6)
 Total incurred related to prior years (206.9)$       (195.8)$       

(1) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development related to Typhoon Hagibis in the 2019 accident year and wildfires in California in 
the 2017 and 2018 accident years, partially offset by unfavorable prior accident year loss reserve development related to Hurricane Irma in the 2017 accident 
year and Typhoon Faxai in the 2019 accident year.  

(2) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development related to wildfires in California in the 2018 accident year, partially offset by 
unfavorable prior accident year loss reserve development related to Typhoon Jebi in the 2018 accident year and Hurricane Irma in 2017 accident year.  

(3) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development in the 2017 accident year. 
(4) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development in the 2016 and 2017 accident years, partially offset by unfavorable prior accident 

year loss reserve development in the 2018 accident year.  
(5) Represents certain medical malpractice treaties pursuant to which the increased underwriting profits created by the favorable prior accident year loss reserve 

development are largely retained by the cedants. As a result, the favorable prior accident year loss reserve development is largely offset by an increase in 
profit commission expense incurred when such favorable prior accident year loss reserve development occurs.  

(6) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development in the longer-tailed lines of business in the 2014 and earlier accident years and in the 
shorter-tailed lines of business in the 2017 accident year, partially offset by unfavorable prior accident year loss reserve development in the longer-tailed lines 
of business in the 2016 to 2018 accident years.  

(7) Primarily reflects favorable prior accident year loss reserve development in the longer-tailed casualty lines of business in the 2014 and prior accident years 
and, to a lesser extent, shorter-tailed lines of business in the 2014 and prior accident years, partially offset by unfavorable prior accident year loss reserve 
development in the marine and aviation lines of business in the 2018 accident year. 
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(c) Information on Incurred and Paid Loss and LAE Development 

The following is information about incurred and paid loss and LAE development, net of reinsurance. The information for 2011 
through 2019 is unaudited and is provided as supplementary information. Information is also included for the portion of unpaid loss 
and LAE, net of reinsurance recoverables, that relate to IBNR. Reported insurance claim information is generally not received from 
the cedants, and such information is therefore impracticable to disclose.  

Property 

As  of

De c e mbe r 31,

2020
Accident

Yea r

2011

(unaudited)

2012

(unaudited)

2013

(una udite d)

2014

(unaudited)

2015

(unaudited)

2016

(unaudited)

2017

(unaudited)

2018

(unaudited)

2019

(unaudited) 2020 IBNR

2011 1,351.2$      1,342.3$     1,269.4$     1,240.7$     1,235.2$     1,217.1$       1,210.9$      1,209.6$     1,207.7$     1,206.4$       -$                      

2012 697.2 579.1 530.3 495.6 478.1 469.4 462.5 460.3 454.9 -

2013 501.2 470.6 444.6 422.1 406.8 403.6 398.1 394.7 0.7

2014 496.4 464.8 451.3 435.2 429.8 425.1 419.7 2.9

2015 368.8 332.0 320.6 306.3 301.9 297.9 4.2

2016 684.1 647.2 596.7 587.9 577.8 11.1

2017 1,174.6 1,179.5 1,148.3 1,127.7 31.9

2018 1,152.7 1,169.4 1,147.8 85.2

2019 988.7 981.5 132.9

2020 1,207.5 648.7

To ta l Incurred Lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 ac cide nt ye ars …………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7,815.9$        

Accident

Yea r

2011

(unaudited)

2012

(unaudited)

2013

(una udite d)

2014

(unaudited)

2015

(unaudited)

2016

(unaudited)

2017

(unaudited)

2018

(unaudited)

2019

(unaudited) 2020

2011 407.8$        796.4$        1,014.3$      1,129.2$      1,171.0$       1,187.2$      1,195.0$      1,199.7$      1,195.3$      1,197.0$        

2012 90.3 268.9 377.8 416.7 438.0 448.0 451.2 460.1 461.1

2013 113.1 277.4 361.0 389.8 396.7 399.7 401.4 403.0

2014 109.4 297.6 360.0 382.9 394.0 397.3 398.4

2015 96.0 217.7 278.3 303.1 307.6 308.8

2016 210.5 429.8 504.8 535.1 552.2

2017 324.5 818.5 977.9 1,023.0

2018 309.5 811.8 944.2

2019 265.1 645.5

2020 301.1

Cumulative  P a id Lo s s  a nd LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident yea rs …………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 6,234.3$       

To ta l incurred lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 ac cident yea rs ……………………………………………...……………………………………………………………………………..7,815.9$        

Cumula tive  pa id lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident years …………….………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 6,234.3

Unpaid lo s s  and LAE, ne t o f re ins urance  re co ve rables , fo r acc ident yea rs  prio r to  2011…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..24.4

Unpaid lo s s  and LAE, ne t o f re ins urance  re co ve rables , a s  o f Dece mbe r 31, 2020…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..1,606.0$        

 ($ in  millions) 

Inc urre d Loss  a nd LAE, Ne t of Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d De c e mbe r 31,

($ in  millions)

P a id Loss  a nd  LAE, Ne t of Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d De c e mbe r 31,
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Casualty & Other – Longer-Tailed Lines of Business(1) 

As of

De c e mbe r 31,

2020
Accident

Year

2011

(unaudited)

2012

(unaudited)

2013

(unaudited)

2014

(unaudited)

2015

(unaudited)

2016

(unaudited)

2017

(unaudited)

2018

(unaudited)

2019

(unaudited) 2020 IBNR

2011 996.0$        1,009.6$     994.6$        974.6$        959.1$         949.9$        942.6$        925.5$        920.6$         904.4$         94.1$                      

2012 877.5 877.5 875.9 860.8 833.1 829.8 832.4 826.4 819.7 94.4

2013 798.6 802.2 799.2 777.5 776.7 783.0 767.4 740.5 132.1

2014 801.8 791.1 794.3 793.9 790.3 784.8 771.7 160.3

2015 794.8 799.0 797.0 793.7 799.1 799.6 170.5

2016 776.7 776.8 787.4 807.8 842.2 181.1

2017 764.4 765.7 783.4 800.1 263.3

2018 727.3 741.6 752.5 393.1

2019 759.7 761.6 564.3

2020 978.1 867.0

To ta l Incurred Lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident yea rs ………………………………………………………………………………………………………...........................................8,170.4$        

Accident

Year

2011

(unaudited)

2012

(unaudited)

2013

(unaudited)

2014

(unaudited)

2015

(unaudited)

2016

(unaudited)

2017

(unaudited)

2018

(unaudited)

2019

(unaudited) 2020

2011 29.6$          89.4$          206.4$        373.4$        501.8$         595.1$         663.0$        709.1$         748.2$         763.7$         

2012 46.9 106.8 201.1 316.6 435.7 521.3 587.0 624.4 648.7

2013 22.2 85.1 176.6 296.4 378.0 452.7 494.6 528.5

2014 29.8 107.5 229.6 342.9 444.7 522.7 580.6

2015 32.2 100.4 205.0 325.8 455.8 536.5

2016 34.8 121.8 242.9 370.0 491.1

2017 34.0 110.6 221.8 347.5

2018 33.0 104.6 206.7

2019 29.0 99.7

2020 47.2

Cumula tive  P aid Lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident years ………………………………………………………………………………………………………......................................4,250.2$       

To ta l incurred lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident yea rs ……………………………………………...……………………………………………………………………………..8,170.4$        

Cumula tive  pa id lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ident yea rs …………….………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 4,250.2

Unpa id lo s s  and LAE, net o f re ins urance reco verables , fo r accident yea rs  prio r to  2011…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..840.0

Unpa id lo s s  and LAE, net o f re ins urance reco verables , a s  o f December 31, 2020…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..4,760.2$       

($  in millio ns )

P a id  Loss  a nd LAE, Ne t of Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d De c e mbe r 31,

Inc urre d  Loss  a nd LAE, Ne t of Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d De c e mbe r 31,

($  in m illio ns )

(1) Represents the following reinsurance lines of business: directors’ and officers’ liability; errors and omissions liability; general liability; and medical malpractice.
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Casualty & Other – Shorter-Tailed Lines of Business(1)

As  of

De c e mbe r 31,

2020

Acc ide nt

Year

2011 

(una udited)

2012 

(unaudite d)

2013 

(unaudite d)

2014 

(unaudited)

2015 

(una udited)

2016 

(una udited)

2017 

(unaudite d)

2018 

(unaudite d)

2019 

(una udited) 2020 IBNR

2011 1,031.2$      1,023.6$     1,007.6$     992.8$        973.0$        963.7$        959.8$        976.0$        972.9$         966.4$         10.5$                     

2012 1,022.3 1,059.9 1,056.8 1,005.5 983.9 958.9 948.4 941.4 933.9 12.4

2013 850.8 868.8 838.4 823.4 804.1 790.3 780.7 769.6 18.7

2014 850.4 833.0 808.8 784.3 772.4 755.0 752.5 30.9

2015 763.4 768.6 784.0 798.4 776.7 776.2 30.7

2016 1,118.0 1,124.4 1,111.6 1,100.3 1,092.6 41.9

2017 1,095.9 1,046.3 1,026.9 994.5 81.1

2018 1,255.4 1,266.1 1,270.7 148.9

2019 1,408.6 1,411.8 280.8

2020 1,408.2 799.3

To ta l Incurre d Lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 ac c ide nt yea rs …………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 10,376.4$      

Acc ide nt

Year

2011 

(una udited)

2012 

(unaudite d)

2013 

(unaudite d)

2014 

(unaudited)

2015 

(una udited)

2016 

(una udited)

2017 

(unaudite d)

2018 

(unaudite d)

2019 

(una udited) 2020

2011 376.5$        606.4$        752.7$        820.9$        858.8$        880.2$        894.5$        906.1$         915.1$           918.1$           

2012 354.8 614.5 740.0 792.7 828.3 846.5 860.2 871.4 876.1

2013 265.4 523.5 613.3 663.0 685.5 704.9 717.5 723.9

2014 251.2 421.1 523.3 572.9 604.6 627.8 636.8

2015 218.5 409.1 518.7 577.7 629.1 653.2

2016 367.2 685.6 828.7 921.3 973.8

2017 342.8 639.1 793.5 867.6

2018 397.9 774.4 952.2

2019 462.0 881.3

2020 418.0

Cum ulative  P a id Lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ide nt yea rs …………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7,901.0$        

To ta l incurre d lo s s  and LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 acc ide nt years ……………………………………………...……………………………………………………………………………..10,376.4$      

Cum ula tive  pa id lo s s  a nd LAE fo r the  2011 thro ugh 2020 a cc ident ye ars …………….………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7,901.0

Unpaid lo s s  a nd LAE, ne t o f re ins uranc e  reco ve rables , fo r ac c ident ye ars  prio r to  2011…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..141.7

Unpaid lo s s  a nd LAE, ne t o f re ins uranc e  reco ve rables , as  o f De cembe r 31, 2020…………………...…………………………………………………………………………………………..2,617.1$         

 ($ in millions) 

Inc urre d Loss  a nd  LAE, Ne t o f Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d  De c e mbe r 31,

($  in millions)

P a id  Loss  a nd LAE, Ne t of Re insura nc e

Ye a r Ende d  De c e mbe r 31,

(1) Primarily represents the following reinsurance lines of business: ocean marine and aviation; auto liability; accident and health; mortgage reinsurance; surety; and 
credit.
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Loss and LAE Reserve Summary and Reconciliation to Consolidated Balance Sheet

Gross Loss and 

LAE 

Reserves(1)

Reinsurance 

Recoverables 

on Unpaid 

Losses

Net Loss and 

LAE Reserves

(in millions)

Property 2,086.0$       (480.0)$         1,606.0$       

Casualty & other - longer-tailed lines of business 4,863.7 (103.5) 4,760.2

Casualty & other - shorter-tailed lines of business 2,864.3 (247.2) 2,617.1

Total 9,814.0$       (830.7)$         8,983.3$       

Unpaid loss and LAE as of December 31, 2020

(1) Includes unallocated LAE, which aggregate to 0.9 percent of gross loss and LAE reserves as of December 31, 2020. Net loss and LAE Reserves by component are 
shown in the preceding tables, and consolidated gross loss and LAE reserves is presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(d) Supplementary Information on Historical Loss and LAE Duration (Unaudited) 

The following table presents supplemental information about average historical loss and LAE duration, net of reinsurance, as of 
December 31, 2020. 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

Property 28.5% 40.3% 17.1% 6.9% 2.8% 1.1% 0.5% 0.9% (0.1%) 0.1%

Casualty & other - longer-tailed lines of business 4.1% 8.9% 13.4% 15.6% 13.9% 10.2% 7.2% 4.7% 3.6% 1.7%

Casualty & other - shorter-tailed lines of business 33.5% 27.8% 13.8% 7.0% 4.4% 2.6% 1.4% 1.1% 0.7% 0.3%

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Loss and LAE Incurred, Net of Reinsurance

As of December 31, 2020

6. Senior Notes 

On November 23, 2009, TransRe completed a public offering of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 8.00% senior 
notes due on November 30, 2039 (the “2039 Senior Notes”). The 2039 Senior Notes are unsecured and unsubordinated general 
obligations of TransRe. Interest on the 2039 Senior Notes is payable semi-annually. The terms of the 2039 Notes permit redemption 
prior to their maturity. The indentures under which the 2039 Senior Notes were issued contain covenants that impose conditions on 
TransRe’s ability to create liens on, or engage in sales of, the capital stock of certain of its subsidiaries, including TRC, TRESA or 
Fair American Insurance and Reinsurance Company.  
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7. Income Taxes 

Alleghany files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries, including TransRe. The method of allocation among 
companies is subject to written agreement, approved by TransRe’s Board of Directors, whereby allocation is made primarily on a 
separate return basis with current credit for net losses. However, TransRe’s allocation of current tax benefit related to tax attribute 
utilization is limited to the lesser of TransRe’s utilization or the Alleghany consolidated group’s utilization.  

The following table presents income tax expense (benefit) for 2020 and 2019:  

Federal State Foreign Total

(in millions)

Year ended December 31, 2020
Current 6.6$           0.9$           56.0$         63.5$         
Deferred (21.4) 0.1 - (21.3)

(14.8)$        1.0$           56.0$         42.2$         

Year ended December 31, 2019
Current (22.1)$        1.1$           66.2$         45.2$         
Deferred 91.3 - - 91.3

69.2$         1.1$           66.2$         136.5$       

The following table presents the difference between the federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate:

Year Ended December 31,

Federal income tax rate 21.0 % 21.0 %
Tax-exempt interest and income subject to dividends-received deduction (3.9) (1.2)
Foreign taxes and tax credits 5.0 0.2
Other, net 1.2 0.2
Effective tax rate 23.3 % 20.2 %

20192020

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) was signed into law on March 27, 2020.  Among 
other provisions, the CARES Act delayed certain employer payroll tax remittance deadlines and created or expanded certain income 
tax credits and loss carryback provisions. The impact of the CARES Act to TransRe is currently not material. 

The increase in the effective tax rate in 2020 from 2019 primarily reflects limitations to the amount of foreign tax credits that 
TransRe was able to utilize to offset foreign taxes, partially offset by tax exempt income representing a larger proportion of pre-tax 
income in 2020. 
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The following table presents the tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:  

As of December 31,

2020 2019

(in millions)

Deferred tax assets:
Loss and LAE reserves 94.8$       93.0$       
Minimum tax credit carry forward - 9.7
Unearned premiums 77.2 68.4
Compensation accruals 24.1 28.0
Net unrealized foreign currency translation 26.3 32.1
Foreign tax credit carryforward 83.0 49.2
Other 44.4 53.2

Gross deferred tax assets 349.8 333.6

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred acquisition costs 100.2 89.0
Net unrealized gains on investments 108.9 60.6
Purchase accounting adjustments 7.1 7.0
Mark to market of equity securities 101.9 109.4
Other 25.6 28.4

Gross deferred tax liabilities 343.7 294.4

Net deferred tax assets 6.1$          39.2$        

A valuation allowance is provided against deferred tax assets when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that 
a portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. TransRe recognized no valuation allowances on TransRe’s deferred tax assets as 
of December 31, 2020 or 2019.

Alleghany’s income tax returns are currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service for the 2015, 2016 and 2017 tax 
year. The following table presents the tax years of tax returns that remain subject to examination by major tax jurisdiction as of December 
31, 2020: 

Major Tax Jurisdict ion Open Tax Years

Australia …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2015 - 2020

Canada …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2016 - 2020

France …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2017 - 2020

Germany …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2019 - 2020

Hong Kong …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2014 - 2020

Japan …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2020

Luxembourg…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2019 - 2020

Singapore …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2016 - 2020

Switzerland …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2018 - 2020

U.K. …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….2014 - 2020

TransRe believes that, as of December 31, 2020, it had no material uncertain tax positions. Interest and penalties relating to 
unrecognized tax expenses (benefits) are recognized in income tax expense, when applicable. There was no material liability for interest 
or penalties accrued as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity 

(a) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table presents a reconciliation of the changes during 2020 and 2019 in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss): 

Unrealized 

Appreciation of 

Investments

Unrealized 

Currency 

Translation 

Adjustment Retirement Plans Total
(in millions)

Balance as of January 1, 2020 227.9$       (120.7)$      (13.7)$        93.5$         
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
     Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 212.4 21.7 7.3 241.4

     Reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income (30.6) - (4.4) (35.0)
Total 181.8 21.7 2.9 206.4

Balance as of December 31, 2020 409.7$      (99.0)$       (10.8)$       299.9$      

Unrealized 

Appreciation of 

Investments

Unrealized 

Currency 

Translation 

Adjustment

Retirement 

Plans Total

(in millions)

Balance as of January 1, 2019 (55.4)$      (123.3)$    (8.7)$        (187.4)$    
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
     Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 290.8 2.6 (5.0) 288.4

     Reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income (7.5) - - (7.5)
Total 283.3 2.6 (5.0) 280.9

Balance as of December 31, 2019 227.9$     (120.7)$    (13.7)$      93.5$       
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The following table presents reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) during 2020 and 2019: 

Years Ended December 31,

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Component Line in Consolidated Statement of Earnings 2020 2019

(in millions)

Unrealized appreciation of investments: Net realized capital gains . (45.9)$             (28.7)$             

Change in allowance for credit losses on AFS . 7.1 19.1

Income taxes 8.2 2.1

Retirement plans: Other operating expenses (5.6) -

Income taxes . 1.2 -

Total reclassifications: Net earnings . (35.0)$              (7.5)$                

(b) Regulations and Dividend Restrictions 

TransRe’s operating units are subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum amount of dividends available to 
be paid by them without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. 

TRC paid dividends of $245.0 million and $321.0 million to TransRe in 2020 and 2019, respectively. TRC could pay additional 
dividends to TransRe without regulatory approval based on its adjusted statutory net investment income. As of December 31, 2020, a 
maximum of $72.8 million was available for dividends by TRC without prior approval of the New York State Department of Financial 
Services.  

In January 2021 TRC declared and in February 2021 paid a $72.5 million dividend to TransRe. 

TransRe’s operations are also regulated in various foreign jurisdictions with respect to currency, amount and type of security 
deposits, amount and type of reserves and amount and type of local investment. Regulations governing constitution of technical reserves 
and remittance balances in some countries may hinder remittance of profits and repatriation of assets. International operations and assets 
held abroad may also be adversely affected by political and other developments in foreign countries, including possible tax changes, 
nationalization and changes in regulatory policy, as well as by consequences of hostilities and unrest. The risks of such occurrences and 
their overall effect upon TransRe vary from country to country and cannot easily be predicted.  

The combined statutory net income of TransRe’s reinsurance and insurance subsidiaries was $95.9 million and $361.5 million for 
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the combined statutory capital and 
surplus of TransRe’s reinsurance and insurance subsidiaries was $4.8 billion and $4.9 billion, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, 
the amount of statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements was not significant in relation to the actual 
statutory capital and surplus in the U.S. 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Legal Proceedings 

TransRe is a party to pending litigation and claims in connection with the ordinary course of its businesses. TransRe makes 
provisions for estimated losses to be incurred in such litigation and claims, including legal costs. In the opinion of management, such 
provisions are adequate and management does not believe that any pending litigation will have a material adverse effect on TransRe’s 
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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 (b) Leases 

TransRe leases certain facilities, furniture and equipment under long-term lease agreements. In addition, certain office space and 
equipment are leased under non-cancelable operating leases that expire at various dates through 2031.  

Lease expense was $15.9 million and $ 18.2 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively. The following table presents the Company’s 
consolidated lease liabilities and right-of-use lease assets related to operating leases as of December 31, 2020: 

Maturity of lease payments, by year

As of December 

31, 2020

(in millions)

1 year or less 19.6$                 

More than 1 year to 2 years 13.5

More than 2 years to 3 years 12.6

More than 3 years to 4 years 12.5

More than 4 years to 5 years 11.6

More than 5 years 40.1

Total lease payments 109.9$               

Less: interest (29.6)

Lease liabilities 80.3$                 

Right-of-use lease assets 65.4$                 

Prepaid lease assets, net of allowances and  incentives 14.9

80.3$                 

(c) Asbestos-Related Illness and Environmental Impairment Exposure 

Loss and LAE include amounts for risks related to asbestos-related illness and environmental impairment. The following table 
presents such gross and net reserves as of December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

As of December 31,

2020 2019
(in millions)

Gross 108.4$       113.0$       
Net 103.6 108.3

The reserves carried for such claims, including the IBNR portion, are based upon known facts and current law at the respective 
balance sheet dates. However, significant uncertainty exists in determining the amount of ultimate liability for asbestos-related illness 
and environmental impairment losses. This uncertainty is due to, among other reasons, inconsistent and changing court resolutions and 
judicial interpretations with respect to underlying policy intent and coverage and uncertainties as to the allocation of responsibility for 
resultant damages, among other reasons. Further, possible future changes in statutes, laws, regulations, theories of liability and other 
factors could have a material effect on these liabilities and, accordingly, future earnings.  

(d) The Pandemic

The Pandemic has significantly disrupted many aspects of society as well as financial markets, and has caused widespread 
global economic dislocation. TransRe cannot reasonably estimate the duration or severity of the Pandemic, or the extent to which the 
related disruption may adversely impact its results of operations, financial position and cash flows, or those of its subsidiaries. 
Adverse impacts from the Pandemic in future periods may include realized and unrealized losses in TransRe’s investment portfolio 
and receivables, increased underwriting losses, and impairment losses on certain subsidiary goodwill and intangible assets. 

10. Foreign Operations & Gross Premium Written Concentration 

(a) Foreign operations 

A significant portion of the premiums earned by TransRe’s operations are generated by offices located in Canada, Europe, Asia, 
Australia, Africa and those serving Latin America and the Caribbean. Although the majority of the premiums earned by these offices 
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typically relate to the regions where they are located, a significant portion may be derived from other regions of the world, including the 
U.S. In addition, although a significant portion of the assets and liabilities of these foreign offices generally relate to the countries where 
ceding companies and reinsurers are located, most investments are located in the country of domicile of these offices. 

Information associated with TransRe’s foreign operations is as follows: 
• Foreign gross premiums written for 2020 and 2019 were each $1.7 billion. 
• Foreign net premiums earned for 2020 and 2019 were $1.6 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively. The foreign country in 

which TransRe generates the largest amount of premium revenues is the U.K. Net premiums earned by operations in the 
U.K. for 2020 and 2019 were $699.6 million and $615.6 million, respectively.  

 • Foreign earnings (losses) before income taxes for 2020 and 2019 were $219.0 million and ($187.4) million, respectively. 

 (b) Concentration 

Significant portions of TransRe’s gross premiums written are produced by a limited number of brokers. Gross premiums written 
produced by TransRe’s three largest brokers were approximately 27 percent, 19 percent and 14 percent in 2020 and 26 percent, 17 
percent and 20 percent in 2019. 

A large whole account quota share treaty accounted for approximately 13 percent in 2020 and 14 percent in 2019 of gross 
premiums written. 

11. Book Value Unit Plan and Mid-Term Incentive Plan

TransRe has a Book Value Unit Plan and a Mid-Term Incentive Plan (collectively, the “TransRe Plans”) for the purpose of 
providing incentives to key employees of TransRe. Under the TransRe Plans, book value units (“BVUs”) and mid-term incentive plan 
(“MTIP”) awards are issued. BVUs and MTIP awards may only be settled in cash. The fair value of each BVU is calculated as 
stockholder’s equity of TransRe, adjusted for certain capital transactions, divided by the adjusted number of BVUs outstanding. BVUs 
have vesting dates of up to approximately the fourth anniversary of the date of grant. The fair value of MTIP awards is calculated based 
on underwriting results compared to specified targets or based on overall results as determined by TransRe’s board of directors. MTIP 
awards have vesting dates of approximately the second or third anniversary of the date of grant. The BVUs and MTIP awards contain 
certain restrictions, related to, among other things, forfeiture in the event of termination of employment and transferability. In 2020 and 
2019, TransRe recorded $44.3 million and $48.7 million, respectively, in compensation expense and a deferred tax benefit of $9.3 
million and $10.2 million, respectively, related to the TransRe Plans. 

12. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

TransRe had an unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit plan and has a funded noncontributory defined benefit plan for certain 
of its employees in the U.S. Benefits under TransRe’s defined benefit plans were frozen as of December 31, 2009, and the unfunded, 
noncontributory defined benefit plan was terminated in December 2019 as described further below. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
the projected benefit obligation was $72.2 million and $79.0 million, respectively, and the related fair value of plan assets was $63.7 
million and $56.9 million, respectively. TransRe also has an unfunded retiree health plan for certain of its employees. All of these 
employee benefit plans are not material to TransRe’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

TransRe has defined contribution benefit plans for certain of its employees. Expenses related to these plans totaled $10.1 million 
and $13.0 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

In December 2019, the Alleghany Board of Directors authorized the termination of various executive retirement plans 
including the unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit plan at TransRe, effective December 24, 2019.  Due in part to this 
authorization for termination of the plan, other comprehensive losses attributable to retirement plans, before tax, were $6.1 million in 
2019. In December 2020, approximately $15 million of total payments were made to participants of the unfunded, noncontributory 
defined benefit plan and $5.6 million of related other comprehensive losses were reversed out of accumulated other comprehensive 
income and reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Earnings as expenses in other operating expenses. All of the forgoing 
amounts are presented before income taxes. 
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13. Related Party Transactions

(a) Reinsurance Transactions 

In the normal course of business, TransRe assumes reinsurance from other subsidiaries of Alleghany. In 2020 and 2019, $28.3 
million and $20.8 million, respectively, of gross premiums written were attributable to reinsurance purchased by other subsidiaries of 
Alleghany.  

In the normal course of business, PRMS acts as a managing general agent for another one of TransRe’s subsidiaries. Prior to 2014, 
PRMS was a subsidiary of TransRe. In 2014, TransRe’s ownership interest in PRMS was transferred to CapSpecialty, a subsidiary of 
Alleghany, for an equity interest in CapSpecialty (see Note 3(i)). Effective October 1, 2019, TransRe bought PRMS from CapSpecialty 
for $0.4 million.  

(b) Investment Management Services 

A subsidiary of Alleghany provides investment management services for TransRe’s equities portfolio. In each of 2020 and 2019, 
$4.9 million of investment expenses related to such investment management services. 

(c) Investment in CapSpecialty 

See Note 3(i) for information on TransRe’s investment in CapSpecialty. 

(d) Dividends to Alleghany

In 2020 and 2019, TransRe declared and paid dividends of $210.0 million and $301.0 million, respectively, to Alleghany. Of the 
$301.0 million in 2019, $101.0 million was paid by transferring TransRe’s ownership interest in CapSpecialty to Alleghany (See Note 
3(i)). 

TransRe declared a $70.0 million dividend to Alleghany on January 2021 and paid it on February 2021. 

14. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the amount of goodwill and intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization expense, reported on 
TransRe’s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Gross Carrying 

Value

Accumulated 

Amortization

Net Carrying 

Value

Gross Carrying 

Value

Accumulated 

Amortization

Net Carrying 

Value

(in millions)

Goodwill 8.8$           -$           8.8$           8.8$           -$           8.8$           

Intangible assets:
Value of business in-force 291.4 291.4 - 291.4 291.4 -
Loss and LAE reserves (98.8) (88.6) (10.2) (98.8) (85.7) (13.1)
State and foreign insurance licenses 19.0 - 19.0 19.0 - 19.0
Trade name 50.0 - 50.0 50.0 - 50.0
Renewal rights 53.0 35.2 17.8 53.0 30.7 22.3
Leases (25.8) (23.7) (2.1) (25.8) (21.6) (4.2)
Internally-developed software 10.0 10.0 - 10.0 10.0 -
Other 5.1 1.2 3.9 5.1 0.9 4.2

Total intangible assets 303.9$       225.5$       78.4$         303.9$       225.7$       78.2$         

The economic useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: value of business-in-force — one year; loss and LAE reserves — 
15 years; state and foreign insurance licenses — indefinite; trade names — indefinite; renewal rights —3 to 14 years; leases — 10 years; 
and internally developed software — 2.5 years. 

The following table presents estimated net amortization income (expense) of intangible assets for year 2021 to 2025: 
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Year Amortization

(in millions)

2021 (0.1)
2022 1.5
2023 1.5
2024 1.5
2025 1.6

15. Subsequent Events

TransRe have evaluated subsequent events for recognition in the financial statements through February 23, 2021, the date its 
financial statements were available for issuance. Subsequent events affecting the realization of assets or the settlement of estimated 
liabilities occurring after this date have not been recognized in the financial statements. 

Events having a material effect on the realization of assets or the settlement of liabilities occurring after December 31, 2020, but 
before the issuance of the accompanying financial statements, have been disclosed in the appropriate footnote. 


